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TO THE MEMBERS OF VECTOR TECHNICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

Opinion 

HARSHAVARDHAN & ASSOCIATES 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VECTOR TECHNICS PRIVATE 

LIMITED ("the Company'"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31. 2025. the Statement 

of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), and the Statement of Cash Flows for the 

year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanator 

information. 

Basis for Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our infomation and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the infomation required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act" in 

the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confomity with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 2025, its loss, total 

comprehensive income, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditor 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the lnstitute 

of Chartered Accountants of India (1CAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant 

to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. 

and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 

ICAI's Code of Ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Our Audit opinion is not mnodified in respect of this matter. 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 

the financial statements as a whole. and in foming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements andAuditor's Report Thereon 
MRDHANN& 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible fofshe rGtarten of the other inomation. The other 
infomation comprises the infomation included in thEManagemem Discussion and Analy sis. Board's 
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Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Corporate Govemance and Shareholder's Infomation. 
but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report there on 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion there on. 

is to read the other In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 
infomation and, in doing so, consider whether the other infomation is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. 

If. based on the work we have perfomed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position. financial performance, total comprehensive income, and cash flows of the Company 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in lndia, including the Accounting 
Standards referred to in Section 133 of Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities: selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies: making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. 
implementation and maintenance of adequate intermal financial controls, that were operating effectively 

for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concen, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic altermative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have 
taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters 
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made there under. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. oAN &A 



An audit involves perlorming procedures to obtain audit ev idence about the amounts and d1sclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
eror. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intenal control relevant to the 
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the Accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also 

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain aud1t 
evidence that is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal 
control. 

Obtain an nderstanding of intemnal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3 Xi) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate intemal financial 
controls sy stem in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and. 
based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. Ilowever, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern 

" Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underly ing transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work, and (i) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the financialsatements. 
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. he planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any sign1ficant deficienciesin 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with releant 
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related 

safeguards. 

From the malters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit matters. we deseribe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circum stances. we 
determine that a matter should not be in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
ROHANe 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.As required by the Companics (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020, issued by the Central government 

of India. in terms of section 143 (1) of the companies Act. 2013. and on the basis of ou 
examination of the books and records as we considered appropriate and according to the informalion 

and explanation given to us, we give in the Annexure B* a statement on the matters specified in 
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable. 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Companies Act 2013. we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit. 

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash flow Statement dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financials comply with the Accounting Standards specified under of 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 

2014. 

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2025. and 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31. 
2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of sub section (2) of section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

h) 

0 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate report in 
"Annexure A*: and 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

There are no pending litigations for or against the Company which would impact its financial 
position. 

ii) The Company does not have any derivatives contracts. Further there are no long term contracts 
for which provisions for any material foreseeable losses is required to be made. 

iii) There are no amounts pending that are required to be transferred to Investor Education and 
Protection Fund. 

() The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that 
the Intermediary shall: 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in othyKpersons oh entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever (Ultimate Beneficiaries") by/oron(bhalohe Company or 
provide any guarantee. security or the liktonon,behal of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
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() 

(i) The management has represented. that, lo the best of its knowledge and beliel. no funds have 
been receivcd by the Company fromn any persons or entities. including lorcign entities ("Funding 
Parties'), with the understanding., whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Company 
shall: 

directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identilied in any manner 
whatsoever (Ultinmate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Party or 

provide any guarantee. security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

(ii)) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances. 

nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause 

(h) ) and (h) (i) contain any material misstatement. 

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 for maintaining books of account 

using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is 
applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023. Based on our examination. which 
included test checks, the company have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of 
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further. during our 
audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 

Furthermore, the audit trail has been preserved by the company as per the statutory requirements 
of record retention where the audit trial feature has been enabled. 

For Harshavardhan & Associ�tes 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN No.024198S) 

MHaeglafledd 

M Harshavardhan Reddy 
Proprietor 
M.No:260224 

UDIN: 25260224BMUJXU2388 

Date: 13 May 2025 

Place: Hyderabad. 
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ANNEXURE "A"TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 1() under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements section of our report o the Members of VECTOR TECHNICS 

PRIVATE LIMITED of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause 
()) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VECTOR 
TECHNICS PRIVATE LIMITED (he Company) as of March 31. 2025, in 
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

These Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's policies, the 

safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act,2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the *Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed underSection 143(10) of the Companies Act,2013.to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting. 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 

procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We beli�ve that the audit evidence we have 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on th 
financial reporting of the Company 

taiped is suficient and appropriate to 
anterna finacial controls system over 
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Meaning of internal financial Controls over Financial reporting 
A company 's internal inancial control over linancial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of linancial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statement for external purpose in accordance with generally 
lccepted account ing principles. A company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporing includes those policies and proccdures that () pertain to the maintenance ol 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly rellect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
Iransacions are recorded as necessary to pemit preparation of linancial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
eNpenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of 
management and directors of the company: and(3)provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or tinely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting. 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 

future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion: 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For Harshavardhan & Associates., 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN No.024 198S) 

MHasat leclde 
M Harshavardhan Reddy 
Proprietor 
M.No:260224 

UDIN: 25260224BMUJXU2388 

Date: 13 May 2025 

Place: Hyderabad. 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph l under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section 
of our report to the Members of VECTOR TECHNICS PRIVATE LIMITED of even date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the 
books of account and records examined by us in the nornmal course of audit. we state that 

i (a) In respect of the Company's Property. Plant and Equipment: 

(A) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company. the company has maintained proper records full particulars. 
including quantitative details and situation of Property. Plant and Equipment. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the company, the company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 

of Intangible assets. 
(C) The company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property. plant and 

Equipment by which all property, Plant and Equipment are verified at reasonable intervals. 
During the year management has physically verified all the Property, Plant and Equipment. In 
our Opinion. and according to the information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(d) The company does not have any immovable Property (other than properties where the company 
is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly. 

clause 3(i)(c) of the order is not applicable. 

(e) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year and hence this 

sub-clause 3(i)\d) of the order is not applicable. 
() According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the company. there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the company 
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property transactions Act. 1988 
and rules made thereunder. 

iü (a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. No discrepancies 
were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records that were more 
than 10% in aggregate of each class of inventory. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in 
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate. from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 
security of current assets. 

m. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company, During the year the company has not given any advances in loan. 
provided any guarantee or given any security to its subsidiaries, Joint ventures, other companies. 
firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. 

(b) The company has not made investments, provided guarantees. provided security and granted 
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the order is not applicable to 
the company to that extent. 

(c) The company has not made investments, provided guarantees provided security and granted 
advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms./jmited Liability Partnerships or any other 
parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clase shiiikc) ot he order is not applicable to 
the company to that extent. Memtership No n 
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Vi. 

d) In the absence of any loans or advances in the nature of loans outstand1ng as at the year end. the 
question ol whether there are amounts overdue for more than ninety days as the balance sheet date 
and reasonable steps have been taken by the company lor recovery of the principal and interest 
docs not arise and accord1ngly this sub clause 3(iiXd) is not applicable 

IX 

(e) In the absence of any loans or advances in the nalure of loans fallen due during the year and hence 
the question of whether the loan has been renewed or extended or fresh loans are granted t0 settle 
the overdue of existing loan given to the same parties does not arise and accordingly this sub 

clause is not applicable. 
() In the absence of any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or 

without specifying any terms or period of repayment and hence the questions of aggregate amount. 
percentage thereof to the total loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to promoters 

.related parties as defined in clause 76 of section 2 of the companies Act. 2013 does not arise and 

accordingly. this sub clause 3(i)X) is not applicable. 

VIIL 

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of section 
185 and 186 of the companies act.2013 are applicable and accordingly the requirement to report on 

clause 3(iv) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

According to the information and explanation given to us the Company has not accepted any 

deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not 
applicable. 

According to the information and explanation given to us. the central government has not 
prescribed the Maintenance of cost records under subsection (1) of section 148 of the companies 
act.2013 for the services provided by the company. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the order is not 

applicable. 

(a) In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues. 
including Goods and Services tax. Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance. Professional tax 
Income Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate 
authorities. 

In respect of statutory dues: 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax. Provident Fund. 

Employees' State Insurance. Professional tax, Income Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues 
in arrears as at March 31. 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

(b) There are no disputed dues Pending as on March 31.2025. 

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
the records of the company. there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income 
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act. 1961 (43 of 1961). 

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis ofour examination 
of the records of the company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year. 

(b) The Company has not been declared a willful 
government or any government authority 

gtcany bank or financial institution or 

(c) In our opinion. and according to the informajon and explanaion given to us. the termns loans Nemuershn 

have been applied for the purpose for which tho\ have:beçfbtained. 



A. 

() Accord1ng to the intormation and explanations given lo us. and the procedures perfomed by 
us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report thal 
the company has not use any short-term funds raised for long term purposes during the ycar. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the company. the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person 

on account of or to meet the obligations. 

L () The Company has not raised money by way of an initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3()a) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

NI. 

() The Company does not have any subsidiary. associate, or Joint venture. Accordingly. the 
requirement to report on clause (ix)X ) of the order is nol applicable to the company 

(b) During the year. the Company has made private placement of shares and the requircments of 
section 42 and section 62 have been complied with and the funds raised have been used for the 
purpose for which the funds were raised. 

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the year. 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 with the 
Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. 

(c) No whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year (and up to the date of 

this report). 
The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not 

applicable. 
xiL According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the company, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act. 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details 
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

NiV. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size 
and the nature ofits business. 

(b)We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 
during the year and till date. in determining the nature. timing and extent of our audit 
procedures. 

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its 
directors or persons connected with its directors. hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

vi In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act. 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a). (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

OHAN &A 
The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 357.53during thelancial year covered by our aud1t. 
And it has incurred Rs 46.87 Lakhs cash losses in tediaely Pceding financial year 
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Thee h.s been esignahon of the slalulory auditors during the year and based on the information 
.)d eplanatioIS ivCn to us by the manayement and the response 1o our communication with tlhe 
outgon! audtors, theC have becn n0 ISsues, objections or concerns raised by the outong 

auditorS 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 

paymenl of inancial iabilities, other infomalion accompany ing the financial statements, the 
auditors knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans. we are Opinion that no 

material uncertainty exists as on the dale of the audit report that company is capable of neeting its 

labilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one vear 

from the balance sheet date: 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us. there is no 

requirenent to spent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the act for Financial vear 

2024-25 .Accordingly. clause 3(xx) (a) and (b) of the order is not applicable. 

For llarshavardhan & Associates., 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN No.024 198S) 

M Harshavardhan Redd 
Proprietor 
M.No:260224 

Date: 13 May 2025 

NAR 

Place: Hyderabad. 

UDIN: 25260224BMUJXU2388 
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1. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY AND MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1 Corporate Inforation 

Vector Technics Private Linmited (the company) is a Private Limited company Incorporated under the 
Provisions of Companies Act 2013. The company is Principally engaged in the business of designing. 
developing and Manufacturing electric Propulsion for UAV's and Robotics. The Company is a 
subsidiary of Zen Technologies Limited having its registered office at Plot No.62. Sy No.376/A 
Prashanth Nagar. Rajiv Gandhi Nagar IDA, Kukatpally. Hyderabad. Tirumala Giri. Telangana. India. 
500072. 

The financial statements for the year Ended 3 I March 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors 
on 13 May 2025. 

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out 

below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. unless otherwise stated. 

1.2 Basis of preparation and presentation of Financial Statements 
The financial statements of Vector Technics Private Limited have been prepared in accordance vwith 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 
2015 (as amended from time to time) notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') 
and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act. 2013, (Ind AS 
compliant schedule lI). as applicable and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
These are the company's first annual financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The Company has adopted all applicable standards and the adoption 
was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 - First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting 
Standards'. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the reported financial position, 

financial performance and cash flows of the Company are provided in Note number 2.31 First Time 
Adoption. 

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the opening Balance sheet as at 
01 April 2023 have been restated in accordance with Ind As for comparative information. 

Reconciliations and explanations of the effect of the transition from previous GAAP to Ind As on the 
Company's Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and LOSs and Statement of Cash Flows are provided in 
notes. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The accounting policies are 



applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements except where a newly issued 
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires change 
in accounting policy hitherto in use. 

L.3 Functional and presentation currency 

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR),. which is also the Company's 
functional currency. AlIl financial information presented in Indian rupees have been rounded-off to two 
decimal places to the nearest lakhs except share data or as otherwise stated. 

1.4 Basis of Measurement 

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention and on an accrual 
basis. except for the following material items in the balance sheet: 

a. Certain financial assets are measured either at fair value or at amortized cost depending on the 
classification: 

b. Employee defined benefit assets/(liability) are recognized as the net total of the fair value of 
plan assets. plus actuarial losses, less actuarial gains and the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation and 

c. Borrovwings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 

1.5 Use of estimates and judgments. 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported anmounts of assets, liabilities. income 
and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised prospectively. 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a 
material adjustment within the next financial year are included in the following notes: 

-Note 2.35 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial asumptions: 

-Note 1.13 - determining an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of 
its life 



L.6 Measurement of fair values 

Accounting polees and drscosures requre nicsurement of fair value lor both linancal and non 
financial ssets. 

Iar value s the price that would he received to sell an asset or paid to transler a liability in an orderly 
Iransaclion betWCen market paricipants at the nncasurement date. The fair value measurement is based 

on the presumption that dhe transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

In the principal market for the asset or liability or 

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

Ihe prineipal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible by the Company The fair value of 

an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when 

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to 
generate cconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling i to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data is available to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 

minimising the use of unobservable inputs 
Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the 

valuation techniques as follows. 

Level l: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as 
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different 
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the 
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. 

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting 
period during which the change has occurred. 

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the 
following notes: 

- Note 2.38 - Financial instruments 



1.7 Current and non-current classification 

Ibe Schedule l to the Act requires assets and liabilities to be classified as cither current or non 
current. The Company presents assets and Iiabilities in the balance sheet based on curren/ non-current 

classification. 

Assets: An asset is classified as current w hen it satisfies any of the follow ing criteria: 
a. I is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in. the Company's normal 

operating cycle: 

b. Iis held primarily for the purpose of being traded: 

C. It is eNpected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date: or 

d. It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. 

Liabilities: A liability is classified as current w hen it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

a. It is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle: 

b. It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded: 

c. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or 

d. the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of liability for atleast 
twelve months from the reporting date. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non 
current. 

1.8 Operating Cycle 

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and realisation in cash or 
cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of 
current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

Summary of Material accounting policies 
1.9 Revenue Recognition 

Sale of products 

Revenue is recognized when the Company substantially satisfied its performance obligation while 
transferring a promised good or service to its customers. The company considers the terms of the 
contract and its customary business practices to determine the ransaction price. Performance 
obligations are satistied at the point of time when the customer obtains controls of the asset. 



Resenue is mcasured hused on transaction price. nhich is the fair salue of the consideration received or 
reeein able. stated net of discounts. relums. Transaction price is reeognised based on the price spccified 
in the contract. net of the estimated sales incentives/ discounts. Accunulated expericnce is ucd to 
estimate and prox ide for the discounts right of return. using the expected value method. 

1.10 Other Income 

Interest Income 

Interest Income mainly comprises of and interest on Margin money deposit with banks relating to bank 
guarantce. Interest income should be recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). However. the 
amount of margin money deposits relating to bank guarantee are purely current in nature. hence 

efleetive interest rate has not been applied. Interest is recognized using the time-proportion metho. 
based on rates implicit in the transactions. 

Other Non Operating Revenue: 

Other Non-Operating revenue is recognized as and when accrued. 

1.11 Borrowing Cost 

General and specific borowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualify ing asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete 
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of ime to get ready for their intended use or sale. 

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualify ing assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. 
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.12 Foreign Currency Transaction 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of entities 
within the Company at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated into the functional currency at the 
exchange rate at that date. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on 
translating monetary items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial 
recognition during the period or in previous financial statements are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss in the period in which they arise. 

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical cost 
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction, if any. 



1.13 Property Plant & Equipment 

Recognition and measurement 

Property. Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the asset i.e., freight, duties and taxes applicable and other expenses related to acquisition 
and installation. 1The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and other costs 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use. Borrowing costs 
that are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as 
part of the cost of that asset. 

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted 
for as separate items (major components) of property. plant and equipmen. 

Gains and losses upon disposal of an item of property. plant and equipment are determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property. plant and equipment and 
are recognized net within in the statement of profit and loss. 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property. plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow 
to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired through exchange of non-monetary assets are 
measured at fair value, unless the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance or the fair value of 
either the asset received or asset given up is not reliably measurable, in which case the asset exchanged 
is recorded at the carrying amount of the asset given up. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a Written down Value Method (WDV) 
basis over the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment based on Schedule Il to the 
Companies Act. 2013 ("Schedule"). which prescribes the useful lives for various classes of tangible 
assets. For assets acquired or disposed off during the year, depreciation is provided on prorata basis. 

Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporing date and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate 
The estimated useful lives are as follows: 



Type of A sset 

Furniture and Fixtures 

Computers 
Office Equipment 
Plant and Machinery 

1.14 Intangible assets 

Advances paid tow ards the acquisition of property. plant and equipment outstanding at each reporting 
date is disclosed as capital advances under other current assets. 

Amortization 

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready to use before such date are disclosed under capital 

work-in-progress. Assets not ready for use are not depreciated. 

Type of Asset 

Estimated useful life in 

Intangible assets are recognised when the asset is identifiable. is within the control ofthe Company. it is 

probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company 
and cost of the asset can be reliably measured 

Patents 

years 

1.15 Financial Instruments 

10 

Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on a written down value basis over the 
estimated useful lives of intangible assets or on any other basis that reflects the pattern in which the 
asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the entity. Intangible assets that are 
not available for use are amortized from the date they are available for use. 

5 

a. Financial assets 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Estimated useful life in 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

years 

20 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded 



at fair value through profit or loss. transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame 
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on he 
Irade date. i.e.. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

(i) Debt instrument at FVTPL 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as 
at FVTPL. 

(i) Investment in Preference Shares and Unquoted trade Investments 

Investment in Preference Shares and Unquoted trade Investments are measured at amortised cost using 
Effective Rate of Return (EIR). 

(iüi) Investment in equity instruments 

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 

held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to 
which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments. the Company 
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 
fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification 

is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on 
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from 0CI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However. the Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments i.e., investments in equity shares within the FVTPL category are measured at fair 
value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
(iv) Investments in subsidiaries 

Investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less accumulated impairnent losses, if any. Where an 
indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiaries and joint venture. the 
diffierence between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss. 

Derecognition 

A financial asset (or. where applicable. a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar inancial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.. removed from the Company 's balance sheet) when: 



() The rights to receive cash tlows fronn the assct have expircd, or 

(i) The Company has transferred ils rights to reccive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass 
through arrangement: and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset. or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks 
and rew ards of the asset. but has transferred control of the asset. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash lows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement. it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rew ards of 
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
asset, nor transferred control of the asset. the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to 
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that 
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

b. Financial liabilities 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss, loans and borrowings. pay ables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge. as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the 
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including 
bank overdrafts. financial guarantee contracts. 

Subsequent measurement 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification. as described below: 

(i) Loans and borrowings 

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and 
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR 
amortisation process. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings. 
Derecognition 

financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 



substant1ally ditlerent tens, or the terns of an eisting habilty are substantially modilicd. suh an 
Cehange or modtication is treated as the derecognition of the original lhability and the recogniton ol a 
new labilty The difference in the respective carry ing amounts is recogniscd in the statement of proli 
and loss 

Offsetting: 
Financial assets and financ1al lhabilities are offTset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if 
there is a currently and legally enforceable right to set off the anmounts and it intends either to settle 

them on a nct basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously 

L.16 Inventories 
Inventories consist of finished goods and are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value 
The cost of all categories of inventories is based on the weighted average method. Cost includes 

Cxpenditures incurred in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing them to their 
existing location and condition. 

1.17 Impairment of non-financial assets 
The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets. are reviewed at 

cach reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists. then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

'For impaiment testing. assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into 
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash 
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. which are 
prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. 
These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods. a 
long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To 
estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the 
Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for 
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not 
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which 
the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair 
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their 

present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset). 
An impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss if the estimated recoverable 

amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. Impairment losses 

recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any 
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit on 
a pro-rata basis. 



An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment losses 
recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has 
decreased or no longer esists. An impairment loSs is reversed if there has been a change in the 

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent 
that the asset's carrying amount does not excecd the carrying amount that would have been determined. 

net of depreciation or amortization. if no impairment loss has been recognized. 

1.18 Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Cash and bank balances comprise of cash balance in hand. in current accounts with banks, demand 
deposit, short-term deposits. For this purpose, "short-term" means investments having maturity of three 

months or less from the date of investment. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of our cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the 
purpose of the statement of cash flows. 

1.19 Employee Benefits 

Short term employee benefits 
Short-1erm employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised 
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated 
reliably. 

Defined Contribution Plan 

The Company's contributions to defined contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and 
loss as and when the services are received from the employees. 

Defined Benefit Plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The 
liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit 

method. 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future 
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that 
have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 
statement of profit and loss. 



Remeasurement gains and losses arising from eNperience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur. directly in other comprehensive income. 
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or 

curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost, 

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits is calculated using 

the projected unit credit method consistent with the advice of qualified actuaries. The present value of 

the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using 

interest rates based on prevailing market yields of Indian Government Bonds and that have terms to 

maturity approximating to the terms of the related defined benefit obligation. The current service cost of 
the defined benefit plan. recognised in the statement of profit and loss in employee benefit expense. 
reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year. 
benefit changes, curtailments and settlements. Past service costs are recognised immediately in income. 

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 

obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the 
statement of profit and loss. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes 
in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period 

in which they arise. 

Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed. 

without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employ ment 
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to 
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized as an 

expense if the Company has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy. it is probable that the 
offer will be accepted. and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. 

Other long-term employee benefits 
The Company's net obligation in respect of other long term employee benefits is the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the curr ent and previous periods. That 
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurements are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. 

1.20 Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is. if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. 

Company as a Lessor: 
Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as a finance or operating lease. When ever the 
terms of a lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. the contract 



is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classilied as operating leases. Rental ncome Iro 
operating leases are recognized on straight line basis over the lerm of relevant lcase. 

Company as a Lessee: 
The Connpany applies a single recognition and measurement approach or all leaSes, eNcept lor shorn 
lerm leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease lhabilities to make lcasc 

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underly ing assets 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both 

periods cov ered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option: and periods covered by an option to ternminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain 
not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Conmpany is reasonably certain lo exercise an 

option to eNlend a lease., or not to exercise an opion to terminate a lease. it considers all relevant facts 
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend 

the lease. or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease lerm it 
there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. 

Right of use asset 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the 
lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception 
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease 
pavments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial 
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing 
the underly ing asset or restoring the underly ing asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use 
assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment 
losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is 
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term 
or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of use assets are determined on 
the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment 
whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss. 
if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 

Lease Liability 

The Company measures the lease liability at present value of the future lease payments at the 
commencement date of the lease. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses 
its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the 
lease is not readily determinable. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the 
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the 
lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement 
of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in slatement of profit and loss. 



Short term leases and Lease of Low value assets 

The Comnpany applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term lcascs of build1ny. 

machinery and cquipment (ie.. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the 

commencement dale and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low -valuc assets 

recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low valuc. Lease 

payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight 

line basis over the lease term. 

1.21 Tax Expenses 

Tax expense consists of current and deferred tax. 

Current Tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year 

and any adjustment to the tax pay able or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current 

tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the 

uncertainty. if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or 

substantively enacted by the reporting date. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 

applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretations and considers whether it is probable that a 
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. 

Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carry ing amounts of assets 
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation 
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not 
a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the 
transaction: and 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences, the carry forwards of unused 
tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax 
losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history 
of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient 
taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or 
recognised. are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is 
probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 



Deferred tax is measured at the lax rates that are expected to apply to the period hen the assel is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 

which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 

and liabilities. 

1.22 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Provisions 
A provision is recognised if. as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits wil be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised under finance costs. 
Expected future operating losses are not provided for. Provision in respect of loss contingencies 
relating to claims, litigations, assessments, fines and penalties are recognised when it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred and the amount can be estimated reliably. 

Contingent liabilities 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash 
flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the 
balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised under finance costs. 
Expected future operating losses are not provided for. Provision in respect of loss contingencies 
relating to claims. litigations, assessments, fines and penalties are recognised when it is probable that a 
liability has been incurred and the amount can be estimated reliably. 

Contingent assets 

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount 
cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless 
the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. 



Contingent assets has to be recopniscd in the financial statements in the period in which if it is virtully 

certain that an inllow of cconomic beneits w ill arise. Contingent assets arc assesscd continually and no 

such benetits were found for the current financial year. 

1.23 Earnings Per Share 

The Company presents basic and diluted carnings per share ("LPS") data for its ordinary shares. Basic 

carnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit afler tax by the weighted average number of 

cquity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted carnings per share is computed by dividing the 

profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic carnings 

per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon 

conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

1.24 Cash flow Statements 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. whereby net profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for 

the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 

receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. 

The cash flows from regular revenue generating (operating activities). investing and financing activities 

of the Company are segregated. 

1.25 Trade receivables 

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using efective interest method, less provision for impairment. 

1.26 Trade and other payables 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end 

of the financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are presented as current 
liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months after the reporting period. They are 
recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. 

1.27 Determination of fair values 

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value. for certain 
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement 

and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further information 
about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or 
liability. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 



a Property, plant and equipment 

Property. plant and equipment, if acquired in a business combination or through an exchange of non 
monetary assets, is measured at fair value on the acquisilion date lor this purpose. lair value is bascd 

on appraised market values and replacement cost. 

b. Intangible assets 

The fair value of brands, technology related intangibles, and patents and trademarks acquired in a 

business combination is based on the discounted estimated royalty payments that have been avoided as 

a result of these brands, technology related intangibles, patents or trademarks being owned (the reliet 

of roy alty method). The fair value of customer related. product related and other intangibles 

acquired in a business combination has been determined using the multi-period excess carnings method 
after deduction of a fair return on other assets that are part of creating the related cash flows. 

c. Inventories 

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business combination is determined based on its estimated 

selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a 
reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to complete and sell the inventories. 

d.Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of 
future principal and interest cash flowS, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. 

For finance leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar lease agreements. In 
respect of the Comnpany's borrowings that have floating rates of interest, their fair value approximates 

carry ing value. 

New standards adopted by the company 

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Restated financial information 

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their 
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information. is 
material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general 
purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant 
impact in its financial statement. 

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes 

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and 
decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in 
paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to 
Iransactions that. on initial recognition. give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary 
differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its 
financial statements. 



Ind AS 8- Aceounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and acounting 
estimates, The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a deinition of 
accounting estimates. Under the new detinition, accounting estimates are "monctary amounts n 

financial statements that are subject to mcasurement uncertainty Entities develop accounting 

estmates il accounting policies require items in Restated financial information to be measured in a way 
that involves mcasurement uncertainty. The company does not eNpect this amendment to have any 

signiticant impact in its financial statements. 

New Accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing slandards 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the y ear ended 
March 31. 2025. MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards 

applicable to the Company 

CA 
ombership 

260224 
No 

edA Acoo 
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Inda. S0002 

lector l cchocs Private imted 

3 

stalement of Profitand Loss for the Period I nded 31st \larch 2025 

5 

CI:BI900TG202PIIGS2"8 

Income 

Revenuc from Operalions 
Other Income 

Espenses 
Cost of NMaterial Consumed 

Employee bencfits expense 

Changes in inventones of fin1shed gocds and worh-in-progress 

D1rect Manufacturng Expenses 

Iinance costs 

Other evpenses 
Depreciation and amort1zat1on expenses 

Profit before tax (1-2) 

Tax expense 

() Current tav 
(2) Deferred tax 

Net Profit for the vear (3-4) 

Other comprehensive income (0CI) 
a) () lems that will not be reclass1fied to proft or loss 

P'ariculars 

Total Res enue 

() Income relat1ng to items that w1ll not be reclass1fied to proft or loss 

b) () ltems that will be reclass1fied to profit or loss 

Earnings per share 

() Income relat1ng to items that w1ll bc reclass1fied to profit or loss 

Total other comprehensive income 

Total Expenses 

Total comprehensive income for the year (5 +6) 

Bastc earnings per share of Rs 10/-cach 
Diluted earn1ngs per share of Rs 10/- each 

-For BasiIC carnings per share 
'For Diluted earn1ngs per share 

Chartered Accountants 

FR No 024 198S 

For Harshavardhan & Associates.. 

M Harshav ardhan Redl 
Proprietor 
M No 260224 

MtfaylA 

Place Hy derabad 
Date 13 May 2025 

( \mount in Indian rupees lakh, escept share dat md where otherwise stalcd) 

Weighted av erage number of equity shares used in Computing Earning Per Shares 

ROHAN 

UDIN 25260224BMUJXRdAcon 

The accompany 1ng notes are an integral part of the financ1al statements Note No 1-2 43 

Membersh1p No 
260224 

ote No. 

219 

D1rector 

2 20 

DIN 08269651 

221 
) 22 

223 

224 

225 

2 26 

2.27 

Prudhvi Pkatapatiio 

Ior the car Lnded 
3I \larch 2025 

CANICS 

99 00 

TER 

0 78 

99.78 

41 26 

Ktor 

68 08 

84 23 
75 55 

1917 

149 84 

438.14 

(338.36) 

(83 26) 

(255.10) 

(255.10) 

(2.481 28) 
(2.481 28) 

10,281 1I0 

For and On Behalf Of the Board 

10.281 J0 

thg(Hyderabad m ahendrara) 

Ior the )car Lnded 
3I March 2024 

N O8269651 

131 76 

0 36 

132.12 

52 49 

108 75) 
T1S 08 

61 29 

16 89 

25 09 

162.10 

(29.98) 

(29.98) 

(29.98) 

EETOR TECHNICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

(299 78 ) 

(299 78) 

10.000 00 

10.000 00 



lector I echnics Priv ate Limited 

Registered OffMce iPlot No.62, Sy No3 76/A Prashanth Nagar, Rajis Gandhi Nagar IDA, Aukatpally, lIydcrabad, Tirumalagiri, Telangana, 
Ind1a, S00072 

CIN: 3I900TG2022PICI65278 
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at 31 \larch 2025 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

a) Propert plant and equipment 
ib)Capial work n progress 
c) Rrght of use asseis 
d) other lntangble assets 

(e) Intangible asset under development 
f Funancal assets 

() Lnvesuments 

(giDefeTed tax assets (Net) 

Current assets 

) Other financ1al assets 

(a) Inventories 

Total non-current assets (A) 

(b Financal assets 

Particulars 

() Trade recenvables 
u)Cash and cash equivalent 

(u) Bank balances other than above i) 

Equity 

(NOther fnancal assets 

C) Other current assets 

Liabilities 

EQUITAND LIABILITIES 

Total current assets (B) 

TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 

(a) Equiry share cap1tal 
(b Other equity 

L Non-current liabilities 
(a) Financ1al Iabil1ties 

( Borrow ings 

(bi ProvISIons 

() Lease L1ab1lities 

Total equity (A) 

(c) Defered tax lhab1l1tues (net) 

Total non-current liabilities (B) 

II. Current liabilities 
(a) Fnancial Iab1lties 

() Borrowings 
(u) Lease Liab1l1ties 
(m) Trade pay ables 

(a) Total outstand1ng dues of micro 
enterpr1ses and small enterprnses 
(b Total outstand1ng dues of cred1tors 

other than micro enterpr1ses and small 
enterpr1ses 

(IV) Other financ1al Ihab1l1ties 

C) ProvisIons 
bi Other current liab1lities 

Proprietor 

Total current liabilities (C) 

T0TAL EQUIT) AND LIABILITIES (A+B+C) 

For Harshavardhan & Associates. 

FR No 024198S 
Chartered Accountants 

M Ilarshavardhan Reddy 

M No 260224 

UDIN 25260224BMUXU2388 

Place Hy derabad 
Date 13 Man 202 

Note No. 

21 

4 

7 

210 
21 

212 

213 

214 

212 

215 

215 
2 16 

217 
2 18 

&ASSO 

(Amount in Indian rupees lakh, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

Membershp No m 

260224 

As at 31 March 2025 

108 98 

055 

The accompany ing notes are an ntegral part of the financial statements Note No 1-2 43 

30 69 
8324 

223.46 

141 87 

4 22 

91 57 

124 69 

362.35 

585.81 

449 73 

1 29 

451.02 

D1rector 

4 64 

29 00 

4.64 

83 95 

927 
793 

0 00 

130.15 

S8S.81 

As at 31 March 2024 

59 14 

DIN O826965 | 

9 95 

156.10 

5 00 

209 96 

6 69 

2194 

60 30 

298.89 

454.99 

| 00 

(64 88 ) 

(63.88) 

190 13 

390.15 

02 

Prudhvi Ptyderatad 

66 71 
1 24 

S0 77 

128.72 

'Dr 

454.99 

For and On Behalf Of the Board 
TOI 

As at 01 April 2023 

ATE LIMITED 

aahendraraj 

h9651 

36 19 

41 25 

| 90 

79.34 

101 21 

$ 76 
131| 

IS531 

234.65 

| 00 
(34 90) 

(33.90) 

249 00 

0 02 

249,02 

4 79 

|41 

0 63 

1953 

234.65 



lcctor lechnics Priate Limited 

keestered Offce : Plot \o.62, y.No376/A Prashanth agar, Raj Gandhi Nagar ID \, hukalpally. Ily derabad. Iirumalag1ri, Telangana. 
Inda, 500072 

I:B|900TG2022PTC165278 

Satement of cash low for the \ ear Ended 31 March 2025 

Particulars 

1. Cash Flows from Operating activ ities: 
Net profit before lax 
Adjusted for 

Impairmcnt of intang1ble asset under develepment 
Advances writtenoff 

Deprecialion 
Operating profits before work1ng captal changes 

hanges in current assets and liabilities 

Increase) Decrease in Inventones 
Increasc) Decrease in Trade Receivables 
Increase) Decrease 1n Loans and advances and Other current assets 
(Increasce) Decrease in Other Financial Assets 

Increase (Decrease) in Trade Pavables 

Increase Decrcase ) in Other Financ1al Liab1l1ties 
Increase (Decrease) in Current Iiab1l1ties 

Cash generated from operations 
Income lav paid 

\et cash utilised for operating activities 
B. Cash Flows from Investing activities 

Purchase of Property.Plant and Equipment and changes in cap1tal work in Progress 
Purchase of Other Intang1ble Assets 
Intang1ble Under Development 
Net cash I tilised in investing activities 

C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Repayment of Borrowings 
Proceeds from Issue of shares Includ1ng securities Premium 
Net cash generated in financing activities 

D. Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

E. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning off the year 

F. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 

Cash and Cash Equivalent includes: 
Cash On Hand 
Current Accounts 

As per our report of even date 

For Harshavardhan & Associates. 
Chartered Accountants 
FR No 024198S 

M Harshavardhan Reddy 

Proprietor 
M No 260224 

UDIN 25260224 BMU 

Place Hyderabad 
Date 13 Mav 2025 

&A 

Membershp No 
260224 

UJXU23ered Ac 

(Amount in Indian rupees lahh, except share data and where otherw ise stated) 

Ior the lear Lnded 
31 March 2024 

Director 
DIN 08269651 

Ior the lear Lnded 

31 March 2025 

Prudhvi Pakalan{|Hyderabad 
ANICS 

(338.36) 

9|95 

5 85 

19 17 

(221.38) 

DOL69651 

68 08 

247 
(6997) 

(25 69) 

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in IND AS -7 Statement of Cash Flows 

(| 96) 
(54 14) 

33 18 
(269.41 ) 

(0 26) 

(269.68) 

(69 01) 
(0 55) 

(69.56) 

(361 13) 
770 00 

408,87 

69 63 

21 94 

91.57 

0 08 

91 49 

For and On Behalf Of the Board 

91.57 

VECTOR TECHNICS PRIVATE LIMITED 

KlMahendraraj 

(29.98) 

16 89 

(13.09) 

108 75) 

(093) 
(25 08) 

(3 10) 
6 44 

52 61 
50 14 

(41.76) 

(41.76) 

(39 84) 

(50 70) 
(90.54) 

141 13 

141.13 

8 82 

13 11 

21.94 

0 18 
21 75 

21.94 



Statement of changes in Equity 

(A) Share capital 

Statement of changes in Equity for the Penod ended 31 \March 2025: 

Equity share capital 

10 000 Equity shares of Rs 10 Each Fulls Paid up 
Total 

share 

Equity share capital 

Statement of changes in Equity for the Peiod ended 31 March 2024: 

10.000 Equity shares of Rs 10 Each Fully Pad up 
Total 

(B) Other Equity 
Note-2.11 

On 24 Feburar 2025, the company allotted 8,143 equity shares to Ms Zen Technologies L1mited, each hav1ng a face value of 10 and issucd at a 
premium of 227.007 per share As of March 31. 2025, the company has received a lotal amount of 2770 lakhs, represenung a pad-up value of 23 50 per 

Particulas 

Balance as at 01 April 2023 
Profit for the Year 

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

Profit for the Year 
Securit1es Premium 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 

NARDPAN &AS 

A 

(Amount in Indian upees Lakh. except share data and here othe wise stated) 

260224 

Opening Balance as at Changes in Equity share capital 
01 Aprl 2024 during the sear 

redAcortan 

CIAT 

| 00 

1.00 

Retained Eamings 

Opening Balance as at Changes in Equity share capital 

01 April 2023 during the vear 
00 

1.00 

(34.90) 
(29 98) 

(64.88) 
(255 10) 

0 29 

(319.98) 

0 29 

Securities Premium 

Closing Balance as at 
31 Mlarch 2025 

769 71 

769.71 

129 

1.29 

Closing Balance as at 
31 VMarch 2024 

1 00 

1.00 

Total 

(34.90) 

(29 98) 

(64.88 ) 

769 71 

449.73 



2.1: Property, plant and cquipment 

Particulars 

Gross carrying value/Decmed cost 

Balance as at 01 April 2023 
Additions for the year 
Disposals for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

Additions for the year 
Disposals for the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2025 

Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April 2023 

Depreciation charge for the year 
On disposals 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 

Depreciation charge for the year 
On disposals 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 

Net carrying value 
As at 31 March 2024 

As at 31 March 2025 

Office Equipment 

NARD AAN &ASG 

Membership No m 
Rp 260224 

(Amount in Indian rupces lakh, cxcept share data and where otherwise stated) 

edAcc rtants 

4.58 

4.58 

1.11 

5.69 

2.06 

2.06 

1.16 

3.22 

2.51 

2.47 

Plant and Machinery 

27.75 

34.38 

62.13 

65.91 

128.03 

12.42 

12.42 

15.43 

27.85 

49,70 
100.19 

Furnitures & 

Fixtures 

3.86 

3.59 

7.45 

1.62 

9.07 

1.69 

1.69 

1.79 

3.48 

5.76 

5.59 

Computer and Data 
Processing 

1.87 

1.87 

0.38 

2.25 

0.71 

0.71 

0.80 

1.51 

1.16 

0.74 

Total 

36.19 

39.84 

76.03 

69.01 

145.04 

16.89 

16.89 

19.17 

36.06 

59.14 

108.98 



2.2: Otber Intangible assets 

Particular 

(Gross carry ing value/Deemed cost 

Balance as at 01 April 2023 
1dditions for the vcar 
Disposals for the vcar 
Balance as at 3| 1larch 2024 

13ditons for the vcar 
Dsposals 1or the vcar 
Balance as at 3| March 2025 

tecumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 01 April 2023 
Dprutalion charge for the vcar 
On dispals 
Balance as at 3| 1March 2024 

Depreialien charge for the vcar 
On dpals 
Balance as at | \larch 2025 

\et carrn ing alue 
1s at | \March 2024 
i at| \larch 2025 

A 

Patents 

0.55 

0.55 

000 

0,00 

0.55 

Software License Total 

0.55 

0.55 

0.00 

0.00 

0,55 



2.3 Intangible asset under Development 

Particulars 

Balance as at 01 April 2023 

Additions for the ycar 
Capitalised during the year 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

Additions for the year 

Imapirement 

Capitalised during the year 

Balance as at 31 Mareh 2025 

DHAN & 

Intangible asset under 
Development 

Membership No n 
260224 

KEred AcOutan 

41.25 

50.70 

91.95 

91.95 



I'uiulaus 

KnalDpot 

Partiulars 

Iopcly PlotadI quipmeni 
Ioploscc dmcdbcncht ohl1gatos 
Dtencd a asct on car lonsard losses 

2.6 Inv Cntories 

l'rticulars 

Raw matcnals 

Mork-n pogress 
I nshed goods 

2.7 Trade receiv ables 
Pariculars 

Irade receivables 

lInsecured cons1dered good 
Credit niparcd 

Less Allow ances for expectcd cred1t loss 

2.8 Cash and cash Equivalents 

Refer note no 2.28 for detailed ageing as per Schedule Ill Format 

Pariculars 

a) Cash and cash cquivalents 
1) Cash on hand 

) Balances with banks 

-Current accounts 

2.9 0ther current aSsets 

Particulars 

GST Input tax cred1t 
Advance given to Suppliers 
Oher advances 

Lmployce advances 
TCS Reccivable 

KARDHAWe &ASS 

Membership No 
260224 

GereddAcoo 

\mowt in Indian peCs Lakh, eept shoc data and here otherwbt blalcd) 

sa3 larh 2025 
0 S0 

As at 3 March 2025 

30.69 

As at 31 March 2025 

80 21 
83.24 

As at 31 March 2025 

As at 31 March 2025 

140 17 
I 70 

141.87 

4 22 

4.22 

0.08 

9149 

91.57 

5167 

63 82 
0 00 

8 94 

0 27 

124.69 

As at 31 Murch 2024 

5.00 

5 00 

As at 31 \rch 2024 

As at 31 March 2024 

209 96 
0 00 

209.96 

As at 31 March 2024 

6 69 

6.69 

As at 31 March 2024 

0 18 

As at 31 March 2024 

21 75 
21.94 

3225 

17.S8 

8 13 
235 
0 00 

60.30 

1s at 01 Aprl 2023 

1.90 

1s at 01 April 2023 

As at 0 | April 2023 

I0121 

101.21 

) 00 

As at 0 I April 2023 

5 76 

5,76 

As at 0 I April 2023 

As at 01 April 2023 

13 11 

13.11 

19 47 
I5 80 

35.23 



2 10 \hare ( aputal 

Parhculars 

Audonzed share apital 
00 000 egusty shares of Rs 10 each 

Prevaous vear's I 00 000 equty shares of Rs 10 eah 

Lssued and subscnhed 
18 143 Equur Shares of Rs l0 each 
Pres1ous vears 10 000 eq urv shares of Rs 10 each 

Pad up capita 
10000 equn shares of Rs 10 each Full Padup 
Si43 EquN shares of Rs 10 each. Partlh Padup (Rs 3 pasd up per share) 
Prevzous vea s 10 000 equ shares of Rs l0 each Fully Paud up) 

Recencihabon eí equity shares eutstanding is sef out below 

Particulars 
Openung number of equrty shares share cap1tal 

Add equ shares ssued durng the vear 
iess shares buy backed dunng the vear 
Clesang num ber ef equity shares/share capital 

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

Particulars 

1 MsZen Technologies Limited 

2 Prudhv1 Ray 
3 Kama Mahendra Raj 

4 Chaitarva Reddy Gar1sa 

Details of shares held by premoters 
Particulars 

I Prudhv1 Raj 
2 Kama Mahendra Ra 
3 Chaitarya Reddy Gansa 

2.10.2 Rights attached to equity shares 

2.11 Other equity 

Retaued earaisg 
Opcnung balance 
Add (Less) Profit (Loss) for the vear 
Clesing balance 

Am ount in IndLan upees lakh, Cxcept share data and w here etherwise stated) 

Secur1ties Premiam 

Opcaung balance 
Add (Less ess) add1bon durng the vear 
Closing balance 

As at 31 March 2025 

No. of shares 
10 000 

8.143 

18.143 

ANARD MAN &AS 

Membership No 
260224 

As at 3I March 2026 

No, of shares 

CharttredAcourtz 

9 253 

4 445 

4 445 

18.143 

As at 31 March 2025 

No. of shares 

4 445 

4 445 

8.890 

As at 3I st March 2025 

As at I March 2024 

As at 3l st March 2026 

(64 88 

(255 10) 
.319 98 

10 00 

769 71 
769.71 

0 29 

I 29 

A mount 

| 00 

00 

0 29 

L29 

Hold1ng 
S1 00% 

24 S0% 

24 50% 
o 00% 

100% 

% Holding 
24 50% 

24 50% 
0 00% 
49% 

As at 31st March 2024 

(34 90) 
(29 98) 

-6488 

As at 3I March 2024 

As at 31 March 2024 

No, of shares 

4s at 31st March 2024 

10 000 

10.000 

As at 31 March 2024 

No, of shares 

3250 

3250 

3 500 

Retainod carnings are the profits that Lhe Company has carncd tll date less any transfers to general resenve dvidends or other d1stributuons to sharcholders 

10,000 

No. of shares 
3.250 

3250 

3 500 

10.000 

10 00 

As at 31 March 2024 

I 00 

00 

A m ounf 

| 00 

|000 

% Holding 

L.00 

0 00 
32 50% 

32 50% 

35 00% 

The C ompany has only one class of equity shares hav1ng a face value of Rs 10/- each For all matters subm1tted to vote in a shareholders meeting of the Company, every holder of an equrty share as 
Should the Company declare and pay anv diVidends such dindends wall be pad n Indian rupees to each holder of equuty shares n proportion to the number of shares held to the tOtal equiy shares 

100% 

% Holding 
32 50% 
32 50% 
35 00% 

100% 

As ar 0 Aprl 2023 

As at 01 April 2023 

No. of shares 
10 000 

In the event of lqundabon of the Commpany, all preferental amounts, f any, shall be discharged by the Company The remainung assets of the Company shall be distnbuted to the holders of equty shares un 

proporbon to the number of shares held to the total equty shares outs tanding as on that date 

10.000 

As at 0I Apgl 2023 

No, of shares 

3250 

3250 
| S00 

10.000 

% change during the year 

36 77° 

36 77% 
-100° 

Amount recen ed on Lssue of shares un excess of the face alue has becn classuicd as secur1tucs premium This reserne will be utilsed in accordan ce wIth provisions of Section 52 of thc Compan1ces Act 2013 

I 00 

I 00 

|00 

Amount 

, Hold1ng 
0 00° 

L00 

32 50°% 

32 50° 

35 00% 

100% 



2.12 Borrowings 

Particulars 

\on-current borrow ings 
Secured borroW ings 
Tern loans from banks 

Insecured Loan 
From Related Partles* 

2.13 Prov isions 

Particulars 

ProvIsIon for Gratuit 

2.14 Deferred tax Liabilities 
Particulars 

Property. Plant and Equipment 

2.12 short term Borrow ings 
Particulars 

I nsecured Loan 
From Related Parties* 

ROHAN&A 
JAS 

Meoership No 
260224 

Chate edAco 
SCAIES 

1s at 31 \larch 2025 

As at 31 March 2025 

4 64 

4.64 

As at 31 March 2025 

As at 31 March 2025 

29 00 

29.00 

1s al 31 \larch 2024 

390 13 

390.13 

As at 31 \March 2024 

As at 31 March 2024 

0 02 

0.02 

As at 31 March 2024 

As a 0 Apol 2023 

249 00 

249.00 

s at 0 Aprnl 2023 

As at 01 April 2023 

0 02 

0.02 

As at 01 April 2023 



2.15 Trade pas ables 
Particulars 

Total outstand1ng dues of mIcro entepnses and 
small cnterprises(MSML) 

lotal outstand1ng dues of cred1tors other than 

mero enterprises and small cnterpr1ses(Others) 

Refer note no 2.29 for detailed ageing as per Schedule III Format 

2.16 Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

Salar Pavable 

Audt lce Pav able 
Lxpense Pavable 
Rent Payable 
Lmplovce Reimbursements Pay able 
Labour charges Pay able 

2.17 Oher Current Liabilities 
Particulars 

TDS Pav able 
Profess1onal Tax Pavable 

Advance from Customer 

2.18 Short term provision 
Particulars 

ProvIsIon for Gratuity 

VARD AAN &ASO 

Bembersh1p No 
260224 

edAc 

As at 31 \1arch 2024 

CIATE 

0 00 

9 27 

9.27 

As at 31 March 2025 

0 39 
0 90 

I 50 
0 50 

3 84 

0 80 

7.93 

As at 31 March 2025 

2 18 
0 04 

81 73 
83.95 

As at 31 March 2025 

0 00 

0.00 

As at 31 March 2024 

I 24 

11.24 

As at 31 March 2024 

44 64 

0 60 
20 98 

0 50 

66.71 

As at 3I March 2024 

0 80 

0 15 

49 82 

50.77 

As at 31 March 2024 

As at 01 April 2023 

4 79 

4.79 

As at 0I April 2023 

10 83 
0 30 

298 

14.11 

As at 01 April 2023 

0 32 

032 

0.63 

As at 01 April 2023 



219 Rev Cnue from contraccs with custoners 

Pariculars 

Revenuc from 

Sale of products 
Other Operaling re enuc 
Iotal 

2.20 Oher income 

Particulars 

Other Incomc 

(ain on I oreign Ixchangc 
Iotal 

2.21 Cost of materials consumed 

Particulars 

Raw material 

Purchases 

Add Opening stock 

Less Closing stock 
Total 

2.22 Changes in inventories of finished goods and w ork-in-progress 
Particulars 

Work-in-progress 
Open1ng 
Closing 
Total 

Finished goods 
Opening 
Clos1ng 

Total 

Total 

2.23 Direct Manufacturing expenses 

Particulars 

Contract Labour charges 
Transportation expenses 
salaries and wages 
Job work charges 
Power and Fuel 
Total 

OMAN &A 

260224 

mount n Indan rupecs lakh. ccept sharc dta and wbere utberwie statcd) 

r leredF 

Ior the Period Ende 
31 \larch 2025 

99 00 

99.00 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2025 
0 78 

0.78 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2025 

41 26 

4126 

41.26 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2025 

209.96 
140 17 

69.78 

170 

(1.70) 

68.08 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2025 
24 04 

0 62 
1.98 

56 53 

106 

84.23 

I or the Period Lnded 
3I \larch 2024 

13165 

131.76 

For the Period Ended 
31 \larch 2024 

0 36 

0.36 

For the Period Ended 
31 March 2024 

52 49 

52 49 

52.49 

For the Period Ended 
31 March 2024 

101 21 
209 96 

(108.75) 

(108.75) 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2024 

S9 44 

34 52 

1223 
0 34 

115.08 



Puiulars 

Salanes, wages and bonus 
Ducor Remuncaltons 

nplovce bncts penc 

(ontubuton to POdent unds and other funds 
Slall wcltare 

(italuly I penves 
Iotal 

225Tinance costs 

Particulars 

Intercst C\pensc 

Iotal 

2.26 Depreciation and amortization expenses 

Particulars 

Deprecalion for thc ycar on tangible asscts 
Depreciation for the vcar on Intangible assets 
Total 

2.27 Oher expenses 

Particulars 

Advertusment expenses 
Business Promotuon Expenses 
Forex Gan Loss 

Professional charges 
Rates and Taxes 
Electricity charges 
Housckeeping Expenses 

Water Charges 
Internet Expense 
Prinung and stationary 
Rent Expenses 
Repair and Maintenance 
Food & Travel expenses 

Offce and Maintenance 

Bank charges 
Security charges 
R& DExpenses 
Sales Comm1ssion 

Recuritment charges 
Other expenses 
Bad debts 

Impa1rement of Intang1ble asset under development 
Advances wTIten off 

Total 

(i) Pav ment to Auditors 

Particulars 

For Stautory aud1t fee 
For Certfication Services 
For othcr services 

For out of Pocket expenses 
Total 

NARDP 

Membersh1p No 
260224 

GaredA 

Ior the Pcood I nded 
3I \larh 2025 

69 99 

1 65 

75,55 

Ior the Period Ended 

31 March 2025 

For the Period 

0 00 

Ended 
31 March 2025 

19 17 
0 00 

19.17 

For the Period Ended 
31 March 2025 

187 

1.98 

0 19 

1221 

0 28 

3 06 

263 

043 

256 

2.68 

667 

I06 

837 

132 

033 

362 
0 00 

0.74 

0 18 

0 02 
0 84 

91 95 

5 85 

148.84 

For the Period Ended 
31 March 2025 

I 00 

1.00 

Ior the l'eriod Loded 
3I \1arch 2024 

48 27 

12 00 

6129 

Ior the Period Ended 
3I \larch 2024 

For the Period Ended 

31 \1arch 2024 
16 89 

16.89 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2024 
5 35 

0 05 
0 44 
I 94 

0 19 

0 45 

0 92 

0 50 

2 49 

0.34 

2 00 
|40 

0 26 

I 50 

24.79 

For the Period Ended 
31 \larch 2024 

0 30 

0.30 



ote No 2.28 

Irade Receivables Ageing Schedule 

P'articulars 

Und1sputed trade receivables -considercd good 
Ind1sputed trade receivables - cred1t impaired 

Less Allowances for credit losses 
Balance as at 3I March 2025 

Und1sputed trade receivables - cons1dered good 
Und1sputed rade rccevables - credit inmpaired 
Less. Allowances for cred1t losses 
Balance as at 3I March 2024 

Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 
Und1sputed trade recceivables - cred1t impaired 

Less Allowances for cred1t losses 
Balance as at 01 April 2023 

Note No 2.29: 

Trade pay able agcing schedule 

() MSME 
D Others 

(u) DIsputed ducs - MSME 
(Iv) DIsputcd dues - Others 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

() MSME 
() Ohers 

() Disputed dues - MSME 
(IV) Disputcd dues - Others 

Particulars 

Balance as at 31 March 2024 

() MSM| 
()Obers 

) Dsputcd dues - MSME 
OV)Disputed ducs -Others 

Balance as at 0LApril 2023 ROHAN&A 

Membership No 
260224 

Not due 

Not due 

0 80 

0.80 

Outstanding for follow ing periods from due date of pay ment 
Less than 6 months 6Months I Year 2-3 \ ears 

338 

3.38 

669 

6.69 

S 76 

5.76 

927 

9.27 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment 
Less than l year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 

|1 24 

11.24 

4 79 

0 05 

4.79 

0.05 

1-2 \ears 

More than 3 ears 

1Jore than 3 

Iotal 

9 27 

9.27 

L24 

IL24 

1.79 

4 79 

Iotal 

422 

669 

669 

<.76 



ote o 2 30 Related Party Transaction 

he follow Ing transacti ons w cre carrned out with the relatcd parues in the ordinary course of bus1nes5 

Sho Particulars 

2 

Irishula Advanccd Composiles 
and ElecU onncs PrIvated 

M1 Prudhv1 Raj Pahalapat1 

|Ducted Dynamics Private Lumited Associate Company 

MI hana Mahendra Ra) 

Mr Chaitan ya Reddy Gansa 

Relationship 

ZEN Technologies Ltd 

Associate Companv 

DirectoI 

Director 

Director 

Parent Company 

NARDHAN 

ershp No 

260224 

Nature of Transaction 

Sale of goods and services 

Loan and Adance given 

Closing Balances: 
Loans and Advances 

Purchase of goods and servIces 

Closing Balances: 
Trdc & Otber Pavables 

edAcoanta 

|Investment in Equity Shares 

Sale of Equity Shares 
Remunarat1on 

Closing Balances 

|Investment 
|Loan given by Drector 

Investment in Equity Shares 

Sale of Equity Shares 
Loan given by Director 

Repavm ent of Directors Loan 
Other Advances gIven to Directors 
Rem unarati on 

Closing Balances: 
|Investment 
|Loan given by Director 
Other Advances gIven to D°ectors 

Sale of Equity Shares 
|Loan gven by D1rector 
Repayn ent of Drectors Loan 
Remunerat1on 

Closing Balances 

|Investrm ent 
|Loan gven by D1rector 

Investrm ent in Equiry Shares 
Closing Balances 
Investment 

2024-25 

0 16 

) 78 

| 98 

012 

0 44 

29 00 

0 12 

370 56 
392 06 

7 94 

0 44 

7 94 

0 35 

339 63 

-

770 11 

770 1| 

2023-24 

262 

262 

|562 

1562 

1 00 

0 33 

9 00 

4 00 

0 33 

21 50 

90 63 

4 00 

035 
339 63 

2022-23 

249 00 

249 00 



2.31 First-time adoption of Ind AS 

These financial statements, for the vear ended 31 March 2025. are the first the Company has preparcd in 

accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2024. the Company prepared 

1ls tinancial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 

2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). 

Notes forming part of IND AS Financial Statements: 

Accordingly. the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods 

ending on 31 March 2025, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024. 

as described in the summary of Material accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements. the 

Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at 01 April 2023. the Company's date of transition to Ind AS. 

This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial 

statements, including the balance sheet as at 01 April 2023 and the financial statements as at and for the year 

ended 3 1 March 2024. 

A. Exemptions Applied 

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain 

requirements under Ind AS. The Company has elected to apply following exemptions: 

1.Property, Plant and Equipment 

The Company has not elected to measure any item of property. plant and equipment at its fair value at the 

transition date. the net carrying value of the property. plant and equipment shall be considered as deemed cost for 

Ind As purposes. 

2. Designation of Previously recognised Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified at fair value based on facts and circumstances as at the date 

of transition to Ind AS. Financial assets and liabilities are recognised at fair value as at the date of transition to 

Ind AS i.e.. 01 April 2023 and not from the date of initial recognition. 

3. Estimates 

The estimates at 01 April 2023 and at 31 March 2024 are consistent with those made for the same dates in 

accordance with Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies) 
B. Explanation of transition to INDAS 

An explanation of how the transition from Indian GAAP 1o Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position. 
financial performance and cash flow is set out in the following tables and notes that accompany the tables. The 
reconciliations include 

i) Reconciliation of equity as at 01 April 2023; 

i) Reconciliation of equity as at 31 March 2024: and 

iii) Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the period ended 31 March 2024. 

M yastulodd 

ADHAN &A 

Membership No 
260224 

KeredActo 



C. Statement of Reconciliation of total Equity and Profit and Loss as per Previous GAAP and INDAS 

(All Anmounts are in Lakhs Unless 

Reconciliation of total equity as at 31 Mareh 2024 and 01 April 2023: 

Particulars 

Equity as per Previous GAAP 
Adjustment relating to employee benefit obligations 
Impact on current and deferred taxes 

(A) 

Impact on account of fair valuation of financial assets 

Equity as per INDAS 

(B) 

Particulars 

Net Profit under Previous GAAP 

Items that increase Net Profit 

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the period ended 31 March 202-4: 

Adjustment relating to employee benefit obligations 
Impact on account of fair valuation of financial assets 
Items that reduce Net Profit 
Impact on current and deferred taxes 
Impact on account of Current tax 

2.32 Earnings per Share 

Total Comprehensive Income as per IND AS 

Profit after tax (PAT) 
Net Profit for calculation of Basic and Diluted EPS 

Particulars 

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted 
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. 

Effect of dilutive shares 

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profitv(loss) atributable to equity holders by the weighted 
av erage number of equity shares outstanding during the period'ycar plus the weighted average number of equity 
shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. 

aDHAN &AS 

As at 31 
March 2024 

(63.88) 

JAR 

Membershsp No 
260224 

Otherw ise Specificd) 

(63.88) 

For the Period 
Ended 
31 March 2025 

As at 01 

April 2023 
(33.90) 

(255.10) 
(255.10) 

10.281.10 

(33.90) 

As at March 

31,2024 
(29.98) 

(29.98) 

For the Period 
Ended 
31 March 2024 

(29.98) 
(29.98) 

10.000 



Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted 
EPS (C) 

Basic EPS (A/B) 
Diluted EPS (A/C) 

2.33 Auditor Remuneration 

Particulars 

Statutory Audit Fees 
Tax Audit fees 

For other services 
Total * 

* Excluding Taxes 

2.34 Segment Reporting 

2.35 Details of Employee Benefit 

Particulars 

(a) Defined Benefit Contribution -Provident fund and other funds 

Provident Fund 

PF Admin charges 
Employee State Insurance 
Total 

Gratuity and other Post employment benefits 

Particulars 

Defined Benefit obligation at the beginning 
Interest cost 

Adjustment 

The Company concluded that there is only one operating segment i.e., designing. developing and Manufacturing 

electric Propulsion for UAV's and Robotics. Hence. the same becomes the reportable segment for the Company. 

Accordingly. the Company has only one operating and reportable segment, the disclosure requirements specified 

in paragraphs 22 to 30 are not applicable. 

Current service cost 

(a) Change in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (Gratuity ) 

Past service cost KRDHAN 

Membershp No 
260224 

10.28L 10 

edAcoo 

(2481.28) 

CJATES 

(2481.28) 

For the Period 

Ended 
31 March 2025 

1.00 

1.00 

31 March 2025 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2025 

10,000 

For the Period 

Ended 

For the Period Ended 

(299.78) 

31 March 2024 

(299.78) 

1.89 

2.76 

0.30 

4.00 

For the Period 
Ended 

31 March 2024 

For the Period 
Ended 
31 March 2024 



Benefits Paid 

Actuarial/losses on obligation 
Obligation at the end of the year 

(b) Amount recognised in Profit & Loss Statement for defined benefit contribution plan (Gratuity) 

Net Gratuity Expenses 

Current service cost 

Past service cost 

Premiun Expenses 
Expected Return on Assets 
Net actuarial ( gain)/loss recognized in the year 

Net Employee benefit expense 

Particulars 

(c) Amount recognised in Balance Sheet for defined benefit contribution plan 

(Gratuity) 

Defined Benefit Obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

(Net asset)/Liability recognised in Balance sheet 

Particulars 

Discount rate 
Retirement age 
Future salary increase 

MHasr2ed Membersth1p No 
260224 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2025 

ered Ac Acoou 

4.65 

(d) The assumptions used in accounting for the Gratuity Plan are set out as below: 

31 March 2025 

1.89 

2.76 

For the Period Ended 

4.65 

31 March 2025 

4.65 

4.65 

For the Period Ended 

7.04% 

58 

10.00% 

For the Period 

Ended 

31 March 2024 

For the Period 

Ended 

31 March 2024 

For the Period 
Ended 
31 March 2024 



2.36 Income taxes 

Income ax Expense/(Beneli) recognised in he Statenment of Profit and Loss Account 

Particulars 

Current lav Expense 
Deferred tax Expense 

Deferred tax Benefit 
Total income tax Expense/(Benefit) recogniscd 

Particulars 

Tax Effect on remeasurement of defined benefit Plans 

Total income tax Expense/(Benefit) recognised 

Income lax Expense/(Benefit) recognised in the Statement of other comprehensive income 

Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate 

Particulars 

Profit Before Income tax 
Enacted tax Rate in India 

Computed Expected Tax Expense/(Benefit) 
Tax Effect on 

Expense Not deductible for tax Purpose 
Expense deductible for tax Purpose 

Others 

Income tax Expense/(Benefit) 
Effective tax rate 

RDHAN&ASS 
Membershp No 

260224 

For the Period 

Ended 

Cartere JAcoo 

31 March 2025 

(83.26) 

(83.26) 

For the Period 

Ended 
31 March 2025 

For the Period 

Ended 
31 March 2025 

(338.36) 
25.17% 

For the Period 

Ended 
31 March 2024 

For the Period 

Ended 
31 March 2024 

For the Period 
Ended 

31 March 2024 

(29.98) 
25.17% 



2.37 Contingent Liabilities 

Particulars 

Claims against the Company /Disputed Liabil1ties not 
acknowledged as debts 

Bank Guarantee 

Total 

2.38 Financial Instruments 

Trade Receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The following table shows the carry ing amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, 

including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. 

Particulars 

Other Noncurrent financial assets 

Total 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financial liabilities 

Total 

term nature of these instruments. 

M HayRedd 

Carrying 

Membershp No 
260224 

value 

ered A 

31 March 

JARDHAN &ASS 

2025 

4.22 

91.57 

30.69 

126.48 

29.00 

9.27 

7.93 

46.20 

Fair 

For the Period 

Ended 
31 March 2025 

cost 

value/Amortised 

31 March 2025 

4.22 

91.57 

30.69 

126.48 

29.00 
9.27 

7.93 

46.20 

Carrying 
value 

For the Period 
Ended 

31 March 

2024 
6.69 

21.94 

5.00 

33.63 

390.13 

11.24 

66.71 

31 March 2024 

468.08 

Fair 
value/Amortised 

cost 

31 March 2024 

6.69 

21.94 

5.00 

The fair value of trade receivables, other financial assets, cash and cash equivalents. other bank balances. 
borrowings. trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amount largely due to short 

33.63 

390.13 
11.24 

66.71 

468.08 



2.39 Financial risk management objectives and policies 

The Company's financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The 

Company's Iinancial assets comprise mainly of investments, cash and cash equivalents, other balances with 

banks, loans. trade receivables and other receivables. 

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Comnpany. 

lo set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies 

and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. 

Ihe Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk 

management framework. In performing its operating, investing and financing activities. the Company is exposed 

to the Credit risk and Liquidity risk. 

i) Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices. Such changes in the values of financial instruments may result from changes in the 

foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit. liquidity and other market changes. The Company's 

exposure to market risk is primarily on account of interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk 

include loans, borrowings and deposits. 

a. Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. The Company's does not have any exposure to interest rate risk as there are 

no floating rate borrowings. 

b. Foreign Currency Risk 

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates 
primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). 
Considering the countries and economic environment in which the Company operates, its operations are subject 
to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries. 

Expenditure in Foreign Currency is as follows 
Particulars 

FOB value of Imports 
Contract and Professional Fess 
Other Expenses 

Total 

JARDH 

260224 

ered Aco 

For the Period Ended 

31 March 2025 

13.40 

13.40 

For the Period Ended 
31 March 2024 

9.66 

9.66 



Larnings in Foreign Exchage 

Particulars 

FOB value of Exports 

Contract and Professional Fees 

Dividend Income 

Total 

(ii) Credit Risk 
Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired 

Exposure to credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or 

customer contract. leading to a financial loss. Credit risk encompasses of both. the direct risk of default 

and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk arises 

primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, balances with banks and loan and other 

receivables. 

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous 

basis to whom the credit has been granted after obtaining necessary approvals for credit. Financial 

instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables. 
cash and bank balances and loans. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material 

concentration of credit risk. 

Particulars 

For the Period Ended 

Neither Past due nor impaired 

31 March 2025 

At the end of the reporting period. the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by 
the carry ing amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position. 
No other financial assets carry a significant exposure to credit risk. 

Past due but not impaired 
-Less than 180 days 
-More than 180 days 

None of the Company's cash equivalents, loans and other financial assets were either past due or 
impaired as at the respective reporting period. The Company has diversified its portfolio of investment 
in cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with various banks which have secure credit ratings. 
hence the risk is reduced. 

Membership No n 
260224 

The Company's credit period for trade receivables from its customers generally ranges from 60 - 180 
days. The ageing of trade receivables is given below: 

edAco 

As at 

4.99 

31 March 2025 

4.99 

0.80 

For the Period Ended 
31 March 2024 

3.38 
0.05 

As at 
31 March 2024 

6.69 

4.35 

4.35 



Allow ance for credit Loss 

Total 

Financial instruments and cash deposits 

ii) Liquidity Risk 

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company's top management in 

accordance with the Company's policy. 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments 

associated with financial instruments that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk 

may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. 

The Company has an established liquidity risk management framework for managing its short tern, mediun term 

and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company's exposure to liquidity risk arises 

primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. The Company manages the liquidity 

risk by maintaining adequate funds in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has adequate credit facilities 

agreed with banks to ensure that there is sufficient cash to meet all its normal operating commitments in a timely 

and cost-effective manner. 

Particulars 

The table below analyses derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity 

groupings based on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts 

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

As at 31 March 2025 

Borrowings 
Other financial 
liabilities 

Trade payables 
Total 
As at 31 March 2024 

Borrowings 
Other financial 
liabilities 

Trade pay ables 
Total 

Carrving Value demand 

29.00 

7.93 

9.27 

46.20 

390.13 

66.71 

11.24 
468.08 

On 

OAcoou 

4.22 

29.00 

29.00 

390.13 

390.13 

Less than 3 

months 

7.93 

9.27 

6.69 

17.20 

66.71 

11.24 

77.95 

3 to 12 
months 

1 to 5 
years>5 years 

At present, the Company does expects to repay all liabilities at their contractual maturity. In order to meet such 
cash commitments, the operaygty is expected to generate sufticient cash inflows. 



:40 Capital Management 

Capital includes cquity capital and all reserves allributable to the cquity holders of the Company 
The primar, objective of the capital management is to cnsure that it maintain an cllicient capital 
structure and healthy carpital ratios in order to support its business and masimise shareholder 's value. 
The Conmpany manages its capital structure and make adjustments to it. in light of changes in 
economlC conditons or its business requirements. To maintain or adjust the capital structure. thc 

Company may adjust the diidend pavment to shareholders return capital to shareholders or iSsue 

new shares. 

The Company monitors capital using a debt to capital emploved ratio which is debt divided by toal 

capital plus debt. The Companv's policy is to keep this ratio at an optimnal level. 

Particulars 

Debt 

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Net Debt 

Total Equity 
Capital and Net debt 

Net Debt to Equity Ratio(%) 

Vear: 

Particulars 

the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown 
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year: 

For the Year Ended 

31 March 2025 

aoHAN&A 

Membershp No 
260224 

Note2.41 The follow ing details relating to micro, small and medium enterprises 

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 
the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 
2006 (27 of 2006). along with the amount of the payment made 
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting 

red A 

ES. 

29.00 

(62.57) 

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making pay ment ( which has been paid but beyond the appointed 
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006: 

91.57 

451.02 

388.45 

7.47% 

For the Year Ended 

31 March 2024 

31 March 2025 

390.13 

For the Period Ended 

21.94 
368.19 

(63.88) 

304.32 

128.20% 

For the 
Period 
Ended 
31 March 
2024 



ount of nteres accrucd and remainny unpad at the end 
teach accounting ycar: and the amount of further interest 
remaining due and pay able even in the succeeding vcars. unul 
such date when the interest 
Dues abore are actually paid to the small enterprisc. for the 
purpose of disallow ance of a deductible expenditure under 
section 23of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
Devclopment Act. 2006. 

2.42 Other Statutory Information 

a. (The Company does not have any Benami property. where any proceeding has been initiated 

or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property 

b. The Company does not have any transactions with struck off companies. 

c. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC 

beyond the statutory period. 

d. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto curency or Virtual Currency during the 

financial year. 

e. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or 

entity(ies). including foreign entities (Intemediaries) with the understanding that the 

Intermediary shall: 

(i) 

(ii) 

(i) 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise ) 
that the Company shall: 

(ii) 

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (UItimate Beneficiaries) 

provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

The Company has not entered into any transaction which is not recorded in the books of 
accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant 
provisions of the lncome Tax Act, 1961). 

RDHAV 

M asshaeod 
Membershp No 

260224 
Tkred A ortt 



The Company has not been declared as willul detaulter by an, bank or inancd insututon 
or other lender. 

The Company has complicd with the number of lavers prescribed under clause (87) of 

section of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Laycrs) Rules. 

2017 

No Scheme of Arrangements has been approved by the Conpetent Authority in tems ol 

sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act. 2013, during the year 

The company has not borrowed from any banks and financial institutions during the year 

RDR N&AS 

M ofasslef 2etA 
Membership No 

260224 

eedAcop 



Getor TechniCs Private Limited 

ea financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 

243 Ratios as per the Schedule IlIl requirements 

a 

C 

unts are in INR Lakhs except share data or unless otherwise stated) 

d 

Ratio 

Current Rat1o 

Debt Equty Ratio 
Debt Serv1ce Coverage Rat1o 
Return on Equty 
Inventory Turnover Ratio 

Trade Receivables turnover rat.o 
Trade Payables turnover ratio 
Net Capital Turnover Ratio 
Net profit ratio 
Return on Cap1tal empioyed 

Current Ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities 
Particulars 
Current assets 
Current iabilities 
Ratio 
% Change from previous year 

Reason for change more than 25% 

Total debt (including lease Iiab1lities) 
Shareholder's Equity 
Ratio 

% Change from previous year 

Net Profit after tax 
Add Non cash operating expenses and finance cost 

-Depreciat1on and amort1zations 

-Finance cost 
Provision for bad debts 

Less Non operat1ng income 
Earnings available for debt service 
Interest cost on borrowings 
Lease payments 

Pnncipal repayments for long-term borrowings 
Total Interest and principal repayments 
Ratio 

% Change from previous year 

Reason for change more than 25%: 

Net profit after taxes 
Less Preference dividend 
Earning available to equity shareholders 
Average Shareholder's Equity 
Ratio 
% Change from previous year 

31 March 2025 

Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Shareholder's Eguity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current borrowings 

Particulars 

Cost of inventory consumed 

278 

Average Inventory 

0 06 

Inventory Turnover Ratio 

#DIV 0 
-131 79% 

% Change from previous year 

1 10 

18 13 

Membership No 
260224 

17 31 

Reason for change more than 25%:1t is mainly attributable 1o Increase in Losses 

red Acoo 

0 43 

-257 68% 

-93 15% 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for debt service divided by interest and lease paymnents + principal re 

Particulars 

Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of goods sold divided by average inventory 
Particulars 

Reason for change mnore than 25% The decrease in the debt-to-equity rat1io is prmarily due to a substantial ise in borrowings and increase in 

Shareholders equity dues to Issue of shares for securities Premium 

31 March 2024 

2 32 

-6 11 
DIV/0 

61 32% 
0 38 

21 16 

24 04 

077 

-22 75% 

-9 97% 

Change 

19 90 

-101 05% 

0 00% 

-314 93% 

191 03% 

14 31% 

Return on Equity Ratio / Return on Investment Ratio = Net profit after taxes divided by average shareholder's equity 
Particulars 

-27 98% 

-44 93% 

1032 55% 

834 38% 

31 March 2025 
362 35 
130 15 

2.78 
19.90% 

31 March 2025 
29 00 

451 02 
0.06 

-101.05% 

31 March 2025 

#DIVIO! 
#OIVIO! 

repayments 

31 March 2025 
-255.10 

-255.10 
193 57 

-131.79% 
-314.93% 

31 March 2025 
193 57 
175 92 

1.10 

Note 

31 March 2024 

191.03% 

C 

31 March 2024 

298 89 
128 72 

2.32 

#DIV/O! 

390 13 
-63 88 

-6.11 

31 March 2024 

31 March 2024 

Reason for change more than 25% The increase in the inventory turnover rat1o is primanly due to a Significant nse in the cost of inventory is due to 
unusable stock written off durnng the year 

-29 98 

-29.98 
-48 89 

61.32% 

31 March 2024 
58 83 

155 58 
0.38 



Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Revenue from operats ons dnded by Average Trade Recervables 
Particulars 

Net Credit Saies 

Average Trade Recervabies 

Ratio 
Change from previous year 

Reason for change more than 25% 

Particulars 
Purchase of stock-in-trade 

Trade Payables turnover ratio = Puchases of stock-in-trade and other expenses divided by average Trade Pavables 

Other expenses (excuding other adustments bke alowance for trade recervabies etc) 
Total 

Average Trade payables and provsion for expenses 
Ratio 

% Change from previous year 

Reason tor change more than 25% the decrease in trade pavable rat1oS due to payment within the credit penod 

Revenue from operations 
Working capital 
Ratio 
%Change from previous year 

Net profit ratio = Net profit after taxes divided by Net Sales 
Particulars 

Net profit after taxes 

h. Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Working Capital where Working Capital = Current Assets - Current Liabilities 
31 March 2025 

Particulars 

Net Sales 

Ratio 
% Change from previous year 

Reason for change more than 25% The decrease in ratio iS due to decrease in net profit after taxes 

Finance costs (B) 
Other income (C) 

Reason for change more than 25% : The dechne in the net captal turnover rat1o Is pnmanly due to an decrease in revenue from Operations 

EBIT (D) = (A)+(B)C) 

Return on Capital employed (pre cash)=Earnings Before Interest and Taxes (EBIT) divided by Capital Employed 

Particulars 
Profit before tax (A) 

Capital Employed (Pre Cash) (J)= (E)F)-G) 
Total Assets (E) 

Current abilities (F) 
Cash and Cash equrvalents (G) 
Ratio (D)/(J) 

%Change from previous year 

31 March 2025 

MHasspeet embershp No 

99 00 

31 March 2025 

260224 

5 46 
18.13 

1431% 

Reason for change more than 25% the return on captal ratio is decrease due to Prmanly due to increase in Losses 

ared 

125 49 

52 03 
177.53 

10 25 
17.31 

-27.98 

99 00 
232 20 

0 43 
44.93% 

31 March 2025 

-255 10 
99 00 

-257 63% 
1032.55% 

31 March 2025 
-338 36 

0.78 
339.14 
364.09 
585.81 
130 15 

91 57 
-93.15% 

834.38% 

31 March 2024 
131 76 

31 March 2024 

31 March 2024 

623 

21 16 

57 5 167 
25 09 

192.66 
8 02 

24 04 

31 March 2024 

131 76 
170 17 

o 77 

-29 98 
131 76 

-22 75% 

31 March 2024 
-29 98 

0 36 
-30.34 
304.34 
454 99 

128 72 
2194 

-9.97% 


